FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
12/18/2018 2:33 PM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

Appellate Court Case # No. 76576-1-I

96655-9

SUPREME COURT NO.

STATE OF WASHINGTON SUPREME COURT COA No. 76576-1-I

GREAT OCEAN CAPITAL HOLDING, LLC, a Washington limited liability company; HUY YING CHEN and XUE PING WANG, Husband and Wife Residing in Washington State:

Appellant,

V.

YANLU LIU and AI HUA PAN, Husband and Wife Residing in King County, Washington; PENG ZHANG and ZHONGYUAN PAN, Husband and Wife Residing in Ontario, Canada,

Respondent

PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

PRO SE for Two of Petitioner CHEN HUY YING 5112 189th Ave N.E Sammamish, WA 98074

I. INTRODUCTION

In October 1990, Congress enacted § 203(b)(5) of the Immigration and Nationality Act ('INA") of 1990, which provides that an alien investor may qualify for preferred visa status if the alien is "seeking to enter the United States for the purpose of engaging in a new commercial enterprise," "which the alien has established," and "which will benefit the United States economy and create fulltime employment for not fewer than 10 United States citizens" or lawful aliens. U.S.C. § 1153(b)(5)(A); R.L. Inv Ltd. Partners v. INS, 86 F. Supp.2d 1014, 1016 (D. Haw. 2000).

Because the immigrant investor program is the fifth preference in the "employment-based" visa preference category, it is commonly referred to as the "EB-5" program. The EB-5 program grants lawful permanent resident status in the United States to those who make qualifying investments under the Immigrant Investor Law, 8 U.S.C. §§ 1153(b)(5)1186 b; 8 C.F.R. §§ 204.6, 216.6, Chang v. United States, 327 F.3d 911, 915 (2003).

It is undisputed that EB-5 investors as Plaintiffs in this case are motivated by their desire for U.S. permanent residency status rather than a financial return.

When if Plaintiffs complaints are not a foundation based on "securities" then neither Washington State Securities Act ("WSSA") nor Securities & Exchange Commissioner ("SEC") under 15 U.S.C. § 77r have no jurisdiction with no authorities to pursuit this case, especially this case affect seriously to public disguise about Washington State Court have general jurisdiction over federal matter jurisdiction of Immigration and Nationality Act ("INA"), which will misapplied by many of EB 5 investors under visa retrogression statue to pushing their case into State Court system. *Frederikson v. Poloway*, 637 F.2d 1147, 1153-54 (7th Cir.), *cert. denied*, 451 U.S. 1017 (1981) (dismissal because no security involved)

Beside this is not a securities, the investment from EB 5 pilot program are under Federal question jurisdiction with exemption to registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") and Washington State Securities Act ("WSSA") see Appendix I1. In other words, claims that are based on limited jurisdiction of federal law are to be heard in federal courts. In addition, federal courts exercise "diversity jurisdiction"

over cases (i) where the amount in controversy (generally, the damages the plaintiff claims) exceeds \$75,000, and (ii) the parties are citizens of different states—in legal jargon, where there is "diversity of citizenship."

This Court should examine this appeal case de novo for original Temporal Restrain Order ("TRO") in December 8, 2015, which also be ignored by the Trial Court. The initial TRO with violation constitution law for Due Process Clause of the 14th Amendments. Eventually, this case Summon & Complaint issued Case Number: 15-2-28694-3 from King County Superior Court Clerk office at November 30, 2015 (Dock No-1) and Summon & Complaint received by Defendant at December 11, 2015 after Ex parte TRO be granted at December 8, 2016 (Dock No. -8) (Appendix jj). Although the Superior Court Commissioner Honorable Carlos Velategui warned Plaintiff violated Due Process Clause of the 14th Amendment of Connecticut vs. Doehr, 501 U.S. 1 (1991) (Appendix HH at page 17-18) but TRO still be issued. The worse circumstance that Plaintiffs' & Plaintiffs' Counsel act in bad faith to cheated Commissioner Carlos Velategui stated Plaintiffs could only attached Defendants' business escrow account (Appendix HH at page 18 line 20) but when Counsel presented a propose order for Commissioner signature was not only attach Defendants escrow accounts but all Defendants business accounts. (Appendix II) * in Eastwest Bank. Which cause serious damaged for business operation with almost casualties for ship operation.

*At TRO order stated at page 4 line 3-4 stated at (1) withdrawing, wiring, transferring, expending, or debiting fund from any and all account owned by GREAT OCEAN CAPITAL HOLDING, LLC at East West Bank, This includes but is not limited to account ending in <u>5167.5167</u> was a escrow account at that time.

On date of December 18, 2015, The Trial Court converted TRO to preliminary injunction hearing, which was under lack of personal & subject jurisdiction and venue, Judge Suzanne R. Parisan biased abused her discretion with Judge signature crossed out "This Court has personal and subject matter jurisdiction and venue is proper " for issued her order, Which meaning judge's order lack of jurisdiction to convert TRO for preliminary injunction order (**Appendix K1**) including WSSA. therefore, that order must be void under CR 60 (b) (3)(5).

This case lasting for almost 3 years but continuing spin and not resolved with

personal & subject matter Jurisdiction. The Supreme Court need to review "lack of personal & subject matter jurisdiction and venue before substantive merit.

* Plaintiff as EB 5 applicants intend to withdraw dismiss their application due face China visa retrogression and her parent own financial problems and forced CHENS refund her EB 5 investment, which CHENS asked if they must withdraw their application if their EB 5 fund return. They refused and insisted take both of "green card" & "money back" and CHENS can not break the law and refused then they created this law suit.

See below:

II. IDENTIFY OF PETITIONERS

Defendants/Petitioner, Huy Ying Chen & Wang Xue Ping, (hereinafter referred to as "CHENS") through Pro Se, hereby petitions the Supreme Court of Washington State, pursuant to Washington State. RAP rule 13.4 for discretionary review the decision designated in Appendix A and Appendix B as order denied by COA's Panel of the Court of Appeals Division 1 of dated October 15, 2018 **Appendix A** and order denied CHENS' reconsideration **Appendix B** dated November 19, 2018 for case No. 76576-1-I

III. STANDARD FOR ACCEPTANCE OF REVIEW

The Petitioner seek discretion review of the denied order for motion for modify ruling by Court of Appellate Division 1 ("COA") Chief Administration Clerk / Commissioner & Panel of the Court of Appeals Division 1 on dated of October 08, 2018 and also denied Petitioner reconsideration at November 7, 2018, A true and correct copy of the Order denied is attached to the Notice for Discretionary Review as **Appendix A** to this motion.

Pursuing RAP 13.4 (b) "A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only: (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with another decision of the Court of Appeals; or (3) If a significant question of law under the PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW 8

Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

With "RAP 13.4(b)(1)(3)(4). Petitioner alleged the case must applied under a procedural proceeding law of lack of jurisdiction & lack of standing without substantive merit law.

V. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

The issues for this discretion review presenting to the Supreme Court are for COA's Panel affirmed The Trial Court order and denied Petitioner's reconsideration.

The issues as follows:

- A. Whether the WSSA in exempt could get jurisdiction interfere Congress enacted § 203(b)(5) of the Immigration and Nationality Act ('INA") for EB 5 program investors?
- B. Whether COA erred affirmed for this case with WSSA jurisdiction in exemption from RCW 21.040?
- C. Whether the Trial Court erred striking GOCH's answer & affirm summon?
- D. Whether Supreme Court review de novo for an initial Temporally restrain order which violated constitution law?
- E. Whether RCW 25.15.386 "Right to bring action"_for Washington State RCW limit Liability company should be applied?
- F. Whether the COA erred relied for 15 U.S.C. § 77r which not applied in EB 5 case.

IV. ISSUES PRESENTED WITH LEGAL ARGUMENT

- (a) The Trial Court Improperly Conflated the WSSA, SEC and Immigration and Nationality Act (INA). Neither Securities Exchange Commissioner ("SEC") nor Washington State Security Act ("WSSA") have jurisdiction to hearing & allegation due an EB 5 investment are not a "security" at all in this case:
- (a1) Plaintiffs as an EB 5 applicants intend to obtain a permanent US residency is an entirely non-monetary benefit which cannot reasonable be characterized as a "profit," and is non-transferable, only conferring value to the recipient. Similar to Forman, EB-5 investors are motivated by their desire to "use or consume" something, in this case the benefits and privileges of U.S. permanent residency. When if Plaintiffs complaints not a foundation based on "securities" then WSSA or SEC have no jurisdiction or ground to pursuit. Frederikson v. Poloway, 637 F.2d 1147, 1153-54 (7th Cir.), cert. denied, 451 U.S. 1017 (1981) (dismissal because no security involved).

In this case is most analogous to United housing Foundation, Inc. v. Forman, 421 U.S. 837 (1975)* where the Supreme Court found that the "investment" was motivated overwhelmingly by non-monetary factors and therefore not a **security**. In *United Housing Foundation, Inc. v. Forman* a case concerning the offer and sale of interests in a cooperative housing project, the Court made it clear that the desire to secure income or profit is a determining factor in whether allocated funds can be appropriately characterized as an "investment." In addition, the Court determined that such interests were not "securities," partly because "the investors were attracted *solely* by the prospect of acquiring a place to live, and not by financial returns on their investments (emphasis added)." Nevertheless, the Trial Court effectively disregarded this case clear subjective motivation, Housing Foundation, Inc. v. Forman, 421 U.S. 837 (1975)* thrusting Forman to the side, and instead focusing on post-Forman rulings - S.E.C. v. Goldfield Deep Mines Co. of Nevada, 758 F.2d 459, 463-64 (9th Cir. 1985) and S.E.C. v. Aqua- Sonic Prods. Corp., 687 F.2d 577 (2d Cir. 1982), cert. denied, 459 U.S. 1086 (1982), both of which held that investments made primarily for tax benefits satisfied the expectation of profits prong under Howey.

(a2) The EB-5 program as a Federal question jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. §1332 vest Federal Court with limited jurisdiction to hear cases that "arise under" federal law.

The COA stated that Washington State have general jurisdiction but not for Congress enacted with indication. Teamasters Nat'l Auto. Transporters Indus. Negotiating Comm. V. Thora, 328 F.3d 325, 327 (7th Cir.2003) ("Federal Courts are Courts of limited jurisdiction and may only exercise jurisdiction where it is specifically authorized by federal statute.") and EB-5 as Federal question jurisdiction that WSSA can not substituted.

(a3) The COA may erred for Federal completed diversity jurisdiction in this case and lack of personal jurisdiction issue, as below that WSSA should have no jurisdiction.

Article III, section 2 of the U.S. Constitution provided the basic framework for diversity jurisdiction, with this case four of plaintiff Liu Yuen Lu with expired limited permanent resident card ("expire green card"), Pan Ai Hua ("expired green card"), Pan Zhong Yuan ("People Republic of China Citizen "PRC citizen") and Zhang Peng ("PRC Citizen") vs. Defendants of Great Ocean Capital Holding LLC**, Chen Huy Ying (U.S. Citizen) and Xue Ping Wang* (permanent resident card) (**Appendix L1**).

**Great Ocean Capital Holding LLC have 4 managing member 1. Liu YanLu ("expire green card") live in Washington State Snohomish County, 2. Pan Ai Hua ("expire green card")" live in Washington State, Snohomish County 3. Chen Huy Ying (U.S. Citizen) 4. Wang Xue Ping (permanent resident card).

This is completely a diversity jurisdiction with multiple Plaintiffs or multiple Defendants with domicile. This also need to be addressed that two Plaintiffs with PRC nationality and domicile at Toronto, Ontario, Canada and both of them refused to attend Defendants Counsel "deposition" for both of them cannot get visa to come in U.S.A that are a lack of personal jurisdiction also.

(a-4) There being no grounds whatsoever for asserting general jurisdiction, when cause of action Federally with Congress indicates. WSSA lack of jurisdiction at all.

Foxhall Realty Law Offices, Inc. v. Telecomm. Premium Servs., Ltd., 156 F.3d 432, 435 (2d Cir. 1998) (citation omitted) State Court are court of general jurisdiction and are accordingly presumed to have jurisdiction over federally –created cause of action unless

Congress indicates otherwise, whereas federal courts are court of limited jurisdiction which thus require a specific grant of jurisdiction.") *abrogated on other grounds by Grable & sons Metal Products, Inc. V. Darue Eng's & Mfg.*, 545 U.S. 308 (2005).

Jurisdiction is the power and authority of the Court: The motion could be brought up in any time under lack of subject matter jurisdiction of a Federal question jurisdiction, neither procedural law nor substantive law. It is simply a limitation on the power of a court to act as a court.

(b) The Trial Court erred ruling with WSSA jurisdiction, in fact of all Plaintiffs knew that The WSSA be exempted from RCW 21.040 by Private Placement Memorandum ("PPM") at (Appendix I1-*page 13*) which for both parties signed and agreed:

Please refer to PPM which clearly notice & stated that WSSA be exempted from RCW 21.20.040

OR APPROVED BY THE WASHINGTON SECURITIES ADMINISTRATOR, AND THE SECURITIES OFFERED HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT (THE "ACT") OF WASHINGTON CHAPTER 21.20 RCW AND MAY BE TRANSFERRED OR RESOLD BY RESIDENTS OF WASHINGTON ONLY IF REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT OR IF AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. THE INVESTOR MUST RELY ON THE INVESTOR'S OWN EXAMINATION OF THE PERSON OR ENTITY CREATING THE SECURITIES AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED, IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION ON THESE SECURITIES.

When if a "securities" be registered for WSSA, the administrator refers to the office or agency that has complete responsibility for administrating the securities laws of the State. Then this person has jurisdiction over the registration of professionals and securities, make rules and issue orders, and deny suspend, or revoke registrations. The administrator can be where the offer is made, received, and acted on. At this case that WSSA be exempted and PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW 12

no registered in Washington State or national wide, therefore WSSA or SEC can't have jurisdiction at all.

(c) The COA Court erred stated GOCH's challenges to the Trial Court's orders striking GOCH's answer and determining Pan was entitled to rescission of her investment are similarly without merit.

As discuss above about PPM of EB 5 jurisdiction, which will not allow rescission for EB 5 investment when their EB 5 application of I-526 be presented into USCIS. The truth circumstance that CHENS even agreed to return Pan's EB 5 investment if Plaintiff withdraw their EB 5 Permanent Resident Card application, but Plaintiffs refused with because they want both "green card" and required "investment return", which gives no alternative for only CHEN break Congress enacted § 203(b)(5) of the Immigration and Nationality Act U.S.C. § 1153. Plaintiff required CHENS return their I-526 fund in secret, which CHENS refused. As a designator of USCIS approval Regional center LLC must obey restrict law.

When jurisdiction consistently has been raised up in Trial Court, but Trial Court consistently 'ignored' and biased adopt opposite Counsel's propose order without judge own burden. The law clearly said when jurisdiction be brought up then must be hold and jurisdiction can not be conferred. "Entick v. Carrington, 19 Howell's St. Tr., Col. 1029, 1065-1066 (1765). "Once jurisdiction is challenged, the Court cannot proceed when it clearly appears that the Court lacks jurisdiction, (with this case when the TRO was issued there was no service of the complaints and or summon served yet under due process violated with Connecticut vs. Doehr of 14th amendments. "The law requires proof of jurisdiction to appear on the record of the administrative agency and all administrative proceedings." Hagans v Lavine 415 U. S. 533. Melo v. US, 505 F2d 1026. The court has no authority to reach merits, but, rather, should dismiss the action."

(d)The Supreme Court review de novo when initialed a TRO be void from Ex Parte of Washington Superior Court at December 8, 2015, which violated United State constitution laws for due process clause 14th amendment and the Trial Court judge

issue preliminary injunction order lack of personal & subject jurisdiction.

d-1. Plaintiff filed Summon & Complaint with Case Number: 15-2-28694-3 at November 30, 2015 (docket No. 1), Plaintiffs intend to hold personal service Summon & Complaint until December 11,2015 after Ex Parte TRO be granted at December 8, 2016 (Appendix jj). Because their intention clearly to stopped Defendants' fair chance for TRO hearing, which violated constitution law

d-2 During the Trial Court convert TRO to preliminary injunction under lack of personal and subject jurisdiction and venue. Judge Suzanne R. Parisan biased and with her own pen crossed out "this court with personal & subject matter jurisdiction and venue" to issued her order, meaning she may have no jurisdiction to grant her preliminary injunction order (**Appendix K1**). therefore, that order must be void for CR 60 (b) (3)(5).

(e)The COA erred no considering for a Washington State RCW limit Liability company RCW 25.15.386

The COA erred stated "CHENS" own a majority interest in GOCH and Respondents Yanlu Liu and Ai Hua Pan, husband and wife, own a minority interest" but not applied with Washington State RCW limit Liability company RCW 25.15.386:

RCW 25.15.386 Right to bring action.

A member may bring a derivative action to enforce a right of a limited liability company if: (1) The member first makes a demand on the members in a member-managed limited liability company, or on the managers of a manager-managed limited liability company, requesting that they cause the limited liability company to bring an action to enforce the right, and the managers or other members do not bring the action within a reasonable time; or (2) A demand would be futile.

Plaintiff filed a lawsuit with violated RCW 25.15.386 The Plaintiffs of "LIU" is both Plaintiffs and Defendants position. LIU brought up this case must be futile.

(f) The COA erred relied for 15 U.S.C. § 77r(c)(1)(A)(i) that State should retain jurisdiction but since The EB 5 program not in connection with "securities", therefore, neither SEC nor WSSA have jurisdiction:

15 U.S.C. § 77r (c) Preservation of authority

(1) Fraud authority Consistent with this section, the securities commission (or any agency or office performing like functions) of any State shall retain jurisdiction under the laws of such State to investigate and bring enforcement actions, in connection with securities or securities transactions [2]

Please noted: 15 U.S. Code § 77r (a) (1) (A)(B) - Exemption from State regulation of securities offerings should only apply for Securities

Pursuant 15 U.S. Code § 77r (a) Scope of exemption Except as otherwise provided in this section, no law, rule, regulation, or order, or other administrative action of any State or any political subdivision thereof — (1) requiring, or with respect to, registration or qualification of securities, or registration or qualification of securities transactions, shall directly or indirectly apply to a security that— (A) is a covered security; or (B) will be a covered security upon completion of the transaction;

Pursuit 15 U.S.C. § 77r(a)(2)(A)(B)

(2) shall directly or indirectly prohibit, limit, or impose any conditions upon the use of—
(A) with respect to a covered security described in subsection (b), any offering document that is prepared by or on behalf of the issuer; or

(B) any proxy statement, report to shareholders, or other disclosure document relating to a covered security or the issuer thereof that is required to be and is filed with the Commission or any national securities organization registered under section 780–3 of this title, except that this subparagraph does not apply to the laws, rules, regulations, or orders, or other administrative actions of the State of incorporation of the issuer; or

Pursuit 15 U.S.C. § 77r(a)(3)(b)(A)(B)(C)

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