FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 2/7/2019 11:15 AM THE SUPREME COURT OF WASHINGTON BY SUSAN L. CARLSON CLERK

SUPREME COURT NO. 96655-9 COURT OF APPEALS NO. 76576-1-I

GREAT OCEAN CAPITAL HOLDING, LLC, a Washington limited liability company; HUY YING CHEN and XUE PING WANG, Husband and Wife Residing in Washington State;

Petitioners.

v.

YANLU LIU and AI HUA PAN, Husband and Wife Residing in King County, Washington; PENG ZHANG and ZHONGYUAN PAN, Husband and Wife Residing in Ontario, Canada,

Respondents,

Respondents' Response in Opposition to Petitioner Huy Ying Chen and Xue Ping Wang's Petition for Review

(I). <u>INTRODUCTION.</u>

As a preliminary matter, it must be noted that Petitioners Xue Ping Wang and Huy Ying Chen ("the Chens") are pro se, and therefore cannot make any arguments on behalf of Petitioner Great Ocean Capital Holding, LLC (GOCH). To the extent the Chens make any arguments on behalf of GOCH, Respondents request that this court strike any such arguments and statements.

As they have done countless times before, the Chens have filed petitions that rehash the same arguments made in multiple pleadings before the Court of Appeals and the trial court. Notably, on October 15, 2018, the Court of Appeals affirmed the King County Superior Court's granting of summary judgment and specifically rejected the Chens' arguments.¹

In rejecting the Chens' position, the Court of Appeals noted that the federal law that governs EB-5 investments and the creation of "regional centers" specifically carves out an exception that allows for a victim of a fraudulent EB-5 scheme to sue for damages in state court. Additionally, the Chens' arguments rest on semantics and not a meaningful examination of the applicable law or the record. Like they did

¹ See Division 1's October 15, 2018 ruling at p. 14, attached hereto as "Appendix A."

in their appeal, the Chens repeatedly fail to challenge the reasonableness of Respondent Bonnie Pan's (Pan) reliance on the Chens' materially false and misleading statements. The Chens' current petition is rife with conclusory and speculative claims that are unrelated to Pan's WSSA claims.

Notwithstanding these facts, it must be noted that the court has personal jurisdiction over the Chens and subject matter jurisdiction exists over this matter. Preliminarily, the Chens live in King County, Washington. Further, Petitioners have waived any claim to lack of personal jurisdiction because they appeared in this matter and never filed a CR 12(b) motion to dismiss on personal jurisdiction grounds. Finally, the Chens waived their personal jurisdiction claim by requesting affirmative relief at the trial court. CP 1323-1328. A personal jurisdiction challenge is deemed waived if the party seeks affirmative relief. <u>See</u> CR 12. There is simply no basis to claim that the King County Superior Court lacked personal jurisdiction.

Washington courts have subject matter jurisdiction over this matter because the principal claim in this matter is violation of the Washington State Securities Act ("WSSA"). There is no federal preemption. Washington securities laws are designed to protect investors such as the Respondents. See RCW 21.20 et. seq. Additionally, Washington courts

have heard claims that derive out of EB-5 investments. See Grant County

Port Dist. No. 9 v. Wash. Tire Corp., 187 Wn. App. 222, 349 P.3d 889

(2015).

Because the Chens' arguments are not grounded in law or in fact,

their motions must be denied in its entirety.

(A). Identity Of Respondents.

Respondents, (collectively as the "Respondents") are Yanlu Liu

and Ai Hua Pan, Zhongyuan Pan and Peng Zhang.

(II). <u>RESPONSE TO THE CHENS' ISSUES PRESENTED</u> <u>FOR REVIEW</u>

(1). The trial court did not lack jurisdiction to render judgment against the Chens on Pan's WSSA claim.

(2). Pan's WSSA claim did not interfere with any federal law or Congressional Act.

(3). The Court of Appeals did not err when it held that Pan's WSSA claim is not preempted by federal law, and cited that under 15 U.S.C. 77r(c)(1)(A)(i) that states retain the authority "under the laws of such state to investigate and bring enforcement actions in connection with securities or securities transaction...with respect to---fraud or deceit."

(4). Pan had a right to bring her WSSA claim against the Chens, and was not required under RCW 25.15.386 to bring a derivative action.

(5). The trial court did not err in striking the Chens' answer and affirmative defenses.

(6). There is no legal basis for the Supreme Court to review <u>de novo</u> the issuance of a Temporary Restraining Order.

(7). Pan was not required to bring a derivative action against the Chens.

(III). <u>LEGAL ANALYSIS</u>

(A). Considerations Governing Acceptance Of Review.

Under Rule of Appellate Procedure 13.4(b), a petition for review

will be accepted by the Supreme Court only:

- (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or
- (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or
- (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or
- (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

Here, none of these bases exist. Accordingly, discretionary review by the Washington Supreme Court must be denied. The Chens appear to allege that the Court must accept discretionary review because there is a lack of jurisdiction and lack of standing.² For the reasons set forth below, it is clear that subject matter exists over this Washington State Securities Act matter, that Pan had standing to bring suit in the state court, and that Washington courts have jurisdiction over the Chens.

Discretionary review is an extraordinary procedure that should be granted in only extraordinary cases. <u>See Right-Price Recreation LLC v.</u> <u>Connells Prairie Cmty. Council</u>, 146 Wn.2d 370, 380 46 P.3d 789 (2002);

² See The Chens' Petition for Discretionary Review at p. 9.

<u>See also State v. State Credit Asso</u>, 33 Wn. App. 617, 657 P.2d 327 (1983).

In this matter, discretionary review is not proper because the Chens have failed to show that the Court of Appeal's October 15, 2018 ruling was erroneous. The Chens further fail to show how the trial court lacks personal jurisdiction over them—who are by their own admission, Washington residents³—and fail to show that the trial court lacked subject matter jurisdiction over Pan's claims.

 (B). <u>The Standard Of Review For A Challenge To A Court's Jurisdiction</u> <u>Over A Person Or Issue Is De Novo; And Challenge To A Court's</u> <u>Issuance Of Sanctions For Discovery Violations Is Abuse of Discretion.</u>

(i). Jurisdiction Is A Question Of Law Reviewed De Novo.

Jurisdiction is a question of law reviewed <u>de novo</u>. <u>State v.</u> <u>Squally</u>, 132 Wn.2d 333, 340, 937 P.2d 1069 (1997). The burden of contesting jurisdiction requires that the defendant point to evidence that has been produced and presented to the court, which, if true, would be sufficient to defeat state jurisdiction. <u>State v. L.J.M.</u>, 129 Wn.2d 395, 918 P.2d 898 (1996). Accordingly, the Chens have the burden of contesting jurisdiction. As explained below, the Chens have not and cannot meet this burden.

³ See The Chens' Petition for Discretionary Review at p. 1

(ii). <u>The Trial Court Did Not Abuse Its Discretion When It</u> <u>Struck The Chen's Answers and Affirmative Defenses.</u>

Review of a trial court's issuance of discovery sanctions is for abuse of discretion. <u>See Snedigar v. Hoddersen</u>, 114 Wn. 2d 153, 169, 786 P.2d (1990). A trial court exercises broad discretion in imposing discovery sanctions, and its determination will not be disturbed absent a clear abuse of that discretion. <u>Mayer v. Sto Indus., Inc</u>., 156 Wn.2d 677, 684, 132 P.3d 115 (2006). A trial court's reasons for imposing discovery sanctions should be clearly stated on the record so that meaningful review can be had on appeal. <u>Burnet v. Spokane Ambulance</u>, 131 Wn.2d 484, 494, 933 P.2d 1036 (1997).

Court rules provide that a court may impose sanctions for a party's failure to abide by discovery orders. CR 37(b), (d). Sanctions may range from the exclusion of certain evidence to granting a default judgment when a party fails to respond to interrogatories and requests for production. <u>Magana v. Hyundai Motor Am</u>., 167 Wn.2d 570, 582, 220 P.3d 191 (2009).

Before imposing a harsh discovery sanction, a trial court is required to consider the factors from <u>Burnet v. Spokane</u> <u>Ambulance</u>:

A trial court may impose only the most severe discovery sanctions upon a showing that (1) the discovery violation

was willful or deliberate, (2) the violation substantially prejudiced the opponent's ability to prepare for trial, and (3) the court explicitly considered less severe sanctions.

<u>Teter v. Deck</u>, 174 Wn.2d 207, 216-17, 274 P.3d 336 (2012)(<u>citing Burnet v. Spokane Ambulance</u>, 131 Wn.2d 484, 496-97, 993 P.2d 1036 (1997)).

In their Petition, the Chens fail to discuss the Burnet factors and fail to articulate a clear abuse of discretion from the trial court.⁴ Instead, the Chens argue that because the Court lacks jurisdiction—which is demonstrably false, "the court has no authority to reach merits, but rather, should dismiss the action."⁵

Here, the court did not abuse its discretion when it issued the November 28, 2016 order striking Chens' Answer and Affirmative Defenses.⁶ In utilizing the <u>Burnet</u> factors, the court noted that the Chens had a pattern of willfully disobeying court orders.⁷ For example, on June 21, 2016, the court ordered the Chens to provide supplemental answers to Pan's discovery request by June 30, 2016.⁸ The Chens never provided answers to Pan, in direct violation of the court's order.⁹

⁴ See Chen and Wang's Petition for Discretionary Review at p. 9 and 13.

⁵ <u>Id.</u> at p. 13.

⁶ CP at 1330-1333.

⁷ <u>Id.</u>

⁸ <u>Id</u>. at 1331.

⁹ <u>Id.</u>

Furthermore, the court noted that on September 26, 2016, the Court found the Chens in Contempt for their failure to supplement their answers to discovery.¹⁰ The Court sanctioned the Chens and their counsel \$5,000.00 and ordered that all discovery the Chens were trying to conduct be stayed until they complied with the Order of Contempt.¹¹

In the November 28, 2016 order striking the Chens' Answer and Affirmative Defenses, the court noted that Chens never filed a protection order which they are required to do if they believed the discovery sought was confidential. ¹² Instead, they just refused to engage in discovery in violation of the Court's prior Orders.¹³ In light of the Chens repeated discovery violations, the court reasoned that the striking of the Chens' Answer was the least harsh remedy.¹⁴ The court did not abuse its discretion.

Because the Chens fail to articulate why the court abused its discretion, their argument must be disregarded.

(C). <u>Chen And Wang Have Not Articulated A Cohesive Argument That</u> <u>Would Warrant This Court Accepting Review To Examine Whether The</u> <u>Court of Appeals Erred When It Determined That Washington Courts</u> <u>Had Subject Matter Jurisdiction Over Pan's Claims.</u>

- ¹⁰ <u>Id.</u>
- ¹¹ <u>Id.</u>

¹³ <u>Id.</u>

 $[\]frac{12}{\text{Id.}}$ at 1330-1333.

¹⁴ <u>Id.</u> at 1331-32.

(i). <u>There Is No Federal Preemption Of Pan's Claims and</u> <u>Subject Matter Jurisdiction Exists Over Pan's Claim.</u>

Although Pan struggled to understand the legal basis for Chen and Wang's challenge of the Court of Appeals determination that Washington courts have subject-matter jurisdiction over Pan's state law claims, Pan's understanding is that Chen and Wang are claiming federal law preemption and that Pan's Purchase of a Security was not subject to WSSA. Neither of these claims can serve as the basis for this Court to accept review.

Subject matter jurisdiction refers to a court's ability to entertain a type of case, not to its authority to enter an order in a particular case. See ZDI Gaming, Inc. v. Wash. State Gambling Comm'n, 173 Wn.2d 608, 268 P.3d 929 (2012)("[i]f the type of controversy is within the subject matter jurisdiction, then all other defects or errors go to something other than subject matter jurisdiction." (internal marks omitted)(quoting Marley v. Dep't of Labor & Indus., 125 Wn.2d 533, 539, 886 P.2d 190 (1994)). Subject matter jurisdiction is a broad concept, one that can only be attacked when the court has no power to entertain the controversy, as when the constitution or legislature explicitly denies jurisdiction. In re Marriage of Major, 71 Wn. App. 531, 859, P.2d 1262 (1993). As courts of general jurisdiction, superior courts have long had the "power to hear and determine all matters, legal and equitable, except in so far these powers

have been expressly denied." <u>State ex rel. Martin v. Superior Court</u>, 101 Wash. 81, 94, 172 P.257, 4 A.L.R. 572 (1918). Courts may only find a lack of jurisdiction under compelling circumstances, such as when it is explicitly limited by the Legislature of Congress. As the court stated in <u>Burnside v. Simpson Paper Co.</u>, 66 Wn. App. 510, 517, 832 P.2d 537

(1992), review granted, 120 Wn.2d 1019 (1993):

Because the Washington State Constitution confers such a broad grant of jurisdiction on the superior courts, exceptions to that jurisdictional grant will be narrowly read. <u>Orwick v. Seattle</u>, 103 Wn.2d 249, 251, 692 P.2d 793 (1984). If a Legislature has shown no indication of its intention to limit jurisdiction, an act should be construed as imposing no limitation. 21 C.J.S. <u>Courts</u> § 13.

In this matter, federal law does not preempt Pan's WSSA claim.

With all due respect to Chen and Wang, Pan does not understand Chen and Wang's argument fully. However, from what Pan can gleam, the Chens appear to believe that because Pan's investment in GOCH was related to an EB-5 Visa, her investment was not related to the sale of a security. Pursuant to RCW § 21.20.005, the definition of sell is expansive and unrelated to the definition of sale of a security under federal law. While it is unclear how Petitioners' argument relates to subject matter jurisdiction or the Court of Appeal's opinion, the argument nevertheless fails.

The Chens then state that "EB-5 as Federal question jurisdiction that WSSA cannot substitute."¹⁵ Presumably the Chens are arguing that an investor who is defrauded cannot bring a cause of action under WSSA if the investment was related to an EB-5 Visa. The Chens have made this argument at the trial court, the court of appeals, and now before this Court. At the prior two levels, numerous judges have disagreed and the Chens have failed to present any authority to support that position. Before this Court, the Chens again do not cite any substantive authority. Yes, 28 USC § 1332 discusses when federal district courts have jurisdiction over a claim. However, that statute does not state that Washington courts do not have jurisdiction over a WSSA claim simply because the investment was related to an EB-5 Visa application. Accordingly, the Chens are not entitled to review.

(ii). There Is No Diversity Jurisdiction In This Matter.

The Chens next argue that complete diversity existed in this matter¹⁶. First, whether complete diversity exist—which it does not—has nothing to do with subject matter jurisdiction. Regardless, even if complete diversity did exit, the fact that the Chens did not remove this

¹⁵ See Pet. for Review at p. 11, Section (a2).
¹⁶ See Pet. for Review at p. 11 Section (a3).

matter to federal court did not somehow strip the trial court of subject matter jurisdiction.

The Chens appear to argue that the trial court did not have general jurisdiction over Pan's WSSA claim because it was actually a claim specifically related to her EB-5 application and not the purchase of a security.¹⁷ This statement is false and the Chens do not cite to any authority to support their position nor do they site to any portion of the record to support their factual claim.

Finally, the Chens appear to argue that because GOCH's offering was exempt from registration with Washington state that Pan could not bring a WSSA claim against the Chens.¹⁸ The Chens cite no case law to support their position and registration requirements under WSSA are wholly unrelated to a defrauded investor's ability to bring a civil cause of action under RCW § 21.20.430. Accordingly, the Chens' argument fails.

The Chens present no compelling reason as to why this court lacks subject matter jurisdiction over this matter. The statutes and cases to which they cite do not support their position. The Chens present no cognizant argument as to why this Court should grant the Chens' motion for discretionary review. The ability to argue a Washington state claim in

¹⁷ <u>See</u> Pet. for Review at p. 11 Section (a2). ¹⁸ <u>See</u> Pet. for Review at p. 12 Section (b)

a Washington state superior court is not reserved only to U.S. citizens or residents of Washington state. Quite frankly, the Chens' arguments are nonsensical. Accordingly, this Court should deny the Chens' Petition for Discretionary Review.

(D). <u>The Temporary Restraining Order (TRO) Was Properly Entered By</u> <u>The Trial Court.</u>

(i). <u>Washington Law And Federal Law Allowed Pan To</u> <u>Seek The Ex Parte TRO.</u>

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